
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Streets and Walkways Sub (Planning and 
Transportation) Committee 

 
Date: MONDAY, 18 NOVEMBER 2013 

Time: 11.30am 

Venue: BASINGHALL SUITE - GUILDHALL, EC2 

Members: Jeremy Simons (Chairman) 
Marianne Fredericks (Deputy 
Chairman) 
Randall Anderson 
Dennis Cotgrove 
Alderman Alison Gowman, Police 
Committee (Ex-Officio Member) 
Brian Harris, Finance Committee 
(Ex-Officio Member) 
 

Michael Hudson 
Oliver Lodge 
Sylvia Moys 
Barbara Newman, Open Spaces and 
City Gardens (Ex-Officio Member) 
Deputy John Owen-Ward 
Deputy Michael Welbank 
 

 
 
 
Enquiries: Katie Odling 

tel. no.: 020 7332 3414 
katie.odling@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

 
 

 
Lunch will be served in Guildhall Club at 1pm 

 

 
John Barradell 

Town Clerk and Chief Executive 

Public Document Pack



2 
 

AGENDA 

 
 

Part 1 - Public Agenda 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 

ITEMS ON THE AGENDA 
 
3. MINUTES 
 To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 14 October 2013. 

 
 (Pages 1 - 6) 

 
4. REPORTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT :- 
 
 a) Barbican Seating - Consultation Report  

 

  Following publication of the agenda, please note that this report has been 
withdrawn. 
 

 b) 72 Fore Street   
 

 c) 5 Broadgate   
 

5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB 
COMMITTEE 

 
6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT 
 



STREETS AND WALKWAYS SUB (PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION) COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 14 October 2013  
 

Minutes of the meeting of the Streets and Walkways Sub (Planning and Transportation) 
Committee held at Committee Rooms, 2nd Floor, West Wing, Guildhall on Monday, 14 

October 2013 at 11.30 am 
 

Present 
 
Members: 
Jeremy Simons (Chairman) 
Marianne Fredericks (Deputy Chairman) 
Randall Anderson 
Brian Harris (Ex-Officio Member) 
Michael Hudson 
Sylvia Moys 
Barbara Newman (Ex-Officio Member) 
Deputy John Owen-Ward 
Deputy Michael Welbank 
 

 
Officers: 
Katie Odling - Town Clerk's Department 

Julie Smith - Chamberlain's Department 

Anna Simpson - Comptrollers and City Solicitor’s 
Department 

Paul Monaghan - Assistant Director Engineering 

Steve Presland - Department of the Built Environment 

Victor Callister - Department of the Built Environment 

Iain Simmons - Department of the Built Environment 

Ian Hughes - Department of the Built Environment 

Rob Oakley - Department of the Built Environment 

Sarah Whitehorn - Department of the Built Environment 

Giles Radford - Department of the Built Environment 

Patrick Hegarty - Open Spaces Department 

Alan Rickwood - City Police 

 
 

 
 

Deputy Chairman in the Chair 
 

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
Apologies for absence were received from Alderman Alison Gowman and Oliver 
Lodge.  The Chairman apologised for lateness. 
 

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF 
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
There were no declarations of interest. 
 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 1



3. MINUTES  
RESOLVED - the Minutes of the meeting held on 16 September 2013 be approved as 
a correct record subject to the following sentence being included in paragraph 2 of item 
6 (Fleet and Plumtree Court Public Realm and Security Improvements) – ‘Members 
expressed concern over the limited area of the Section 106.’ 
 
Beating the Bounds (Item 3) – Members were informed that the poor weather 
conditions had affected the turnout of the event which attracted around 100 
motorcyclists.  Members noted that another motorcyclist event had taken place that 
same day in Brighton.  In light of this, very few complaints had been received and 
minimal road closures were required on the day. 
 
Ludgate Hill Crossing Review (Item 5) – Members were informed that funding had not 
yet been secured from Transport for London, however, an application had been 
submitted.  A further update would be provided at the next meeting. 
 

4. REPORTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT :-  
 
4.1 Options Appraisal - Middlesex Street Area project  
 
A report of the Director of the Built Environment was considered in respect of the 
Middlesex Street Area Project. 
 
During discussion, reference was made to the following – 

 

• Consultation process - Members were informed that as part of the consultation 
processes issues in respect of the enhancement of areas, co-ordination of 
maintenance, licensing and trespassing had arisen.  Issues such as the 
positioning of tables and chairs would be addressed as part of the detailed 
design stage. 

• Design - Members were advised that the design of the carriageway would be 
similar to those at Whitecross Street and Cheapside.   

• Signage – As part of the project, signage on Widegate Street had been 
accounted for. 

• Christmas lights – In response to a question, the Assistant Director advised that 
Officers were looking at the capital costs being borne by the City and 
discussions around on-going maintenance costs for the lights were being 
undertaken between the Corporation and the market traders. 

• The use of York Stone was queried and the Assistant Director advised that by 
varying the module of the York Stone and in this case reducing it, this would 
mitigate the risk of cracking where there were high levels of trafficking. 

 
Members were informed that Option 3 under Financial Implications on page 18 of the 
report should read – “The first five years maintenance costs (£815,000) for the new 
planting%” 
 
RESOLVED – That, 

a) new signage and way finding in the project area be implemented and funded by 
£6,000 from 201 Bishopsgate Section 106 agreement; 

b) Phase 1 of the project proceed to Gateway 5 (authorisation to start works) and 
be funded by £96, 571 from 201 Bishopsgate Section 106 agreement; 

c) Option 2 be approved at a total cost between £850,000 to £932,000 to be 
funded by 201 Bishopsgate Section 106 agreement; 

Page 2



d) Temporary traffic experiments be carried out in Widegate Street, Sandy’s Row 
and Fort Street, the outcomes of which to be reported as part of the next 
Gateway; and 

e) Phase 2 of the project be approved to proceed to Gateway 4/5 at a future date. 
 

4.2 Gateway 3 Outline Options Appraisal – 40-45 Chancery Lane (Section 106 
prioritisation)  

 
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of the Built Environment in respect 
of 40 – 45 Chancery Lane (Section 106 prioritisation). 
 
It was agreed that Christmas lighting should be included in the list of potential 
enhancements, along with Quality Court to be funded from Section 106 monies with 
negotiations to progress with the Chancery Lane Association on future maintenance 
costs. 
 
RESOLVED - The projects outlined below be progressed to the detailed design stage 
(in order of priority).  The delivery and scale of Quality Court and Christmas Lighting 
would be subject to funds remaining upon completion of the raised crossovers and 
Southampton Buildings.  
i) Raised crossovers at two locations on Chancery Lane to improve accessibility 

and connectivity; 
ii) Closure to traffic of the eastern end of Southampton Buildings and the creation 

of a new ‘pocket space’; and 
iii) Public realm improvements to Quality Court to enhance the character of the 

courts and alleyways off Chancery Lane, and Christmas Lighting in Chancery 
Lane, subject to negotiations with the Chancery Lane Association on future 
maintenance costs. 
 

Chairman in the Chair 
 

4.3 Detailed Options Appraisal - Aldgate Highway Changes and Public Realm 
Improvement Project  

 
A report of the Director of the Built Environment was considered in relation to the 
Aldgate Highway Changes and Public Realm Improvement project. 

 
During discussion, reference was made to the following –  

 

• Members noted that on St Botolph Street there would be a general narrowing of 
the carriageway with a formal crossing.  The design of the crossing would take 
account of the increasing number of pedestrians and would include a timer, a 
feature of most new crossings. 

• It was noted that by the time construction of the project had begun, the proposed 
20mph speed limit would be in place. 

• One Member highlighted the importance of the safety of pedestrians and that the 
positioning of the bus station needed to be given careful consideration to 
respond to traffic flow.  Members noted that Officers were liaising with Transport 
for London on this matter. 

• Concern had been raised by the Open Spaces Committee about on-going 
revenue costs, for example for the proposed water feature. Revenue costs might 
be funded by larger up-front payments to cover a longer period of running costs. 

• Members were informed that more work would be undertaken to address issues 
regarding pollution from stationary vehicles and a response explaining a plan to 
address this would be submitted to the nearby residents. 

Page 3



• One Member advised that at a meeting between Ward Members it was 
considered that the project should not move forward unless the cycle way 
through the open space was relocated to below ground level.  In response, the 
Assistant Director agreed to contact the Ward Members to arrange a meeting to 
discuss the concerns raised. 

• Members noted that details regarding the design, funding and operation of the 
kiosk were not contained in the report however; the Assistant Director explained 
that these were being investigated by the working party and would be contained 
in the issues report. 
 

Members congratulated Officers for an excellent piece of work and the thorough 
consultation which had been undertaken and it was agreed that an issues report would 
be brought back to the Committee in advance of Gateway 5. 
 
RESOLVED – That Option 1 with an estimated cost of £16.3m to £17.1m be taken 
forward to Gateway 5, and that Urgency procedures, if required, be carried out by the 
Court of Common Council.  
 

5. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB COMMITTEE  
In response to a question from a Member, Officers informed the Committee that gas 
repair work on London Wall had been undertaken, and although the utility had found it 
difficult to access their plant due to other underground services, London Wall had now 
been reopened. 
 

6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT  
There was one item of urgent business in relation to Riverside Walk 
 
The project for landscaping on the Riverside Walk, adjacent to the City of London Boys 
School required ground condition bore holes to be carried out and were approved by 
Committee in June at a cost of £18,895. These costs were required to ascertain the 
deep ground conditions and minimise potential risk on below ground structures and the 
river wall, and commenced in August.  Unfortunately, the drilling of the bore holes had 
to be halted at 7 Metres below ground, due to striking an ‘unidentified ferrous object’. 
Mindful of the potential for this to be a piece of unexploded WWII ordnance, Officers in 
consultation with the Town Clerk and City Surveyor put in place further urgent 
investigative works, involving adjacent drilling to allow access for detection equipment. 
Thankfully this investigation concluded that the object was highly unlikely to be 
ordnance and the object can be left in place.  
 
Carrying out this urgent investigation required expenditure above the level agreed for 
the initial bore holes. Initial estimates were that an additional £24,000 would be 
required to carry out the investigations. However, difficult ground conditions in this 
area, related to instability from below ground voids and buried building material meant 
that 3 additional boreholes were attempted. The final cost of this investigation was now 
£48,965. Detailed breakdown of these costs are in Table below.  

Page 4



 

Fees  Estimated 
Additional  

Costs 
(£) 

Actual 
Additional 

Costs 
(£) 

Difference 
(£) 

Highway permits 3,000 3,000 0 

Drilling of 3 further bore holes to 
triangulate the unidentified object at 
7m below ground level + reporting 
factual. (Inclusive of additional 
boreholes due to obstructions/voids*) 

13,220 35,365* 22,145 

Magnotometer + reading apparatus to 
establish nature of unidentified object 
at below ground level 

2,500 2,500  0 

Reinstatement of footway in the area 
associated with investigations 
(required due to instability of footway 
following additional excavations) 

0 1,100 1,100 

Extraction of object at below ground 
level if identified as an unexploded 
ordnance  (Immediate notification of 
City Police to manage Public Welfare 
and Safety)  

NA N/A NA 

Staff Costs    

To manage communication between: 
local occupiers, investigative agencies, 
stakeholders, Emergency Services, 
manage the City’s Consulting 
Engineers and reporting of outcomes 

5,000 7,000 2,000 

TOTAL 23,720 48,965 25, 245 

 
The bore holes had also confirmed that the ground conditions were fine for the 
landscaping project to commence as intended. 
 
The additional £48,965 for borehole investigations would need to be met from the 
existing project budget of £1,123,305, and if required through the reduction in the 
scope of paving, planting etc..  
 
Members were informed that approval under Urgency procedures had been given by 
the Chairman and Deputy Chairman of the Projects Sub Committee. 
 
RESOLVED - That the costs required to carry out this necessary work to be funded 
from the approved project budget of £1,123,305. 

 
The meeting ended at 1.15 pm 
 

Chairman 
Contact Officer: Katie Odling 

tel. no.: 020 7332 3414 
katie.odling@cityoflondon.gov.uk 

Page 5



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes

